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Electronic comments may be filed 
online at many Federal Depository 
Libraries. 

The consent agreement, the proposed 
final order, and public comments, if 
any, may be reviewed at the 
Enforcement and Compliance Docket 
Information Center, U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency, Rm. 4033, Ariel Rios 
Bldg., 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., 
Washington, DC. Persons interested in 
reviewing these materials must make 
arrangements in advance by calling the 
docket clerk at 202–564–2444. A 
reasonable fee may be charged by EPA 
for copying docket materials.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Philip Milton, Multimedia Enforcement 
Division (2248–A), U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency, 1200 Pennsylvania 
Avenue, NW., Washington, DC 20460; 
telephone (202) 564–5029; fax: (202) 
564–0010; e-mail: 
milton.philip@epa.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Electronic Copies: Electronic copies of 

this document are available from the 
EPA Home Page under the link ‘‘Laws 
and Regulations’’ at the Federal 
Register—Environmental Documents 
entry (http://www.epa.gov/fedrgstr). 

I. Background 
Dobson Cellular Systems, Inc., a 

telecommunications company 
incorporated in the State of Oklahoma 
and American Cellular Corporation, a 
telecommunications company 
incorporated in the State of Delaware, 
disclosed, pursuant to the EPA 
‘‘Incentives for Self-Policing: Discovery, 
Disclosures, Correction and Prevention 
of Violations’’ (‘‘Audit Policy’’), 65 FR 
19618 (April 11, 2000), that they failed 
to prepare SPCC plans for four facilities 
where they stored diesel oil in above 
ground storage tanks, in violation of the 
CWA section 311(b)(3) and 40 CFR Part 
112. Respondents disclosed that for 
eleven facilities they had failed to file 
emergency planning notifications with 
the SERC and failed to provide the name 
of an emergency contact to the LEPC, in 
violation of EPCRA sections 302–303, 
42 U.S.C. 11002–11003. Respondents 
further disclosed that for twenty-three 
facilities they had failed to submit 
MSDSs or a list of chemicals to the 
LEPC, SERC, and the fire departments 
with jurisdiction over the facilities, in 
violation of EPCRA section 311, 42 
U.S.C. 11021; and that for twenty-three 
facilities had failed to submit an 
Emergency and Hazardous Chemical 
Inventory to the LEPC, SERC, and fire 
departments with jurisdiction over the 
facilities, in violation of EPCRA section 
312, 42 U.S.C. 11022. Respondents 

disclosed that for four facilities they had 
failed to notify the implementing agency 
of the existence of UST systems, in 
violations of RCRA section 9002, 42 
U.S.C. 6991a Respondents disclosed 
that for four facilities they had failed to 
notify the implementing agency of the 
existence of an UST in violation of 
RCRA section 9002(a)(1), 42 U.S.C. 
6991a(a)(1). Respondents disclosed that 
at four facilities they had failed to 
comply with UST system upgrade 
requirements in violation of RCRA 
section 9003, 42 U.S.C. 6991b. 
Respondents disclosed that for one 
facility they had failed to notify the 
implementing agency of closure in 
violation of RCRA section 9003, 42 
U.S.C. 6991b. Respondents disclosed 
that for three facilities they had failed to 
obtain operating permits or exemptions 
in violation of CAA section 110, 42 
U.S.C. 7410, and various SIP 
requirements for emergency generators. 

EPA determined that Respondents 
met the criteria set out in the Audit 
Policy for a 100% waiver of the gravity 
component of the penalty. As a result, 
EPA waived the gravity based penalty 
($677,735) and proposed a settlement 
penalty amount of nine thousand, eight 
hundred and forty-three dollars 
($9,843). Of this amount, $7,319 is 
attributable to the EPCRA violations; 
$1,309 is attributable to the RCRA 
violations; $1,062 is attributable to the 
CWA violations; and $153 is attributable 
to CAA violations. This is the amount 
of the economic benefit gained by 
Respondents, attributable to their 
delayed compliance with the CWA, 
EPCRA, RCRA, and CAA regulations. 
Respondents have agreed to pay this 
amount. EPA and Respondents 
negotiated and reached an 
administrative consent agreement, 
following the Consolidated Rules of 
Practice, 40 CFR 22.13(b), on July 2, 
2002 (In Re: Dobson Cellular Systems, 
Inc. and American Cellular Corporation 
Docket Nos. CWA—HQ–2002–6002, 
EPCRA–HQ–2002–6002, RCRA–HQ–
2002–6002, CAA–HQ–2002–6002). This 
consent agreement is subject to public 
notice and comment under CWA section 
311(b)(6), 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6). 

Under CWA section 311(b)(6)(A), 33 
U.S.C. 1321 (b)(6)(A), any owner, 
operator, or person in charge of a vessel, 
onshore facility, or offshore facility from 
which oil is discharged in violation of 
the CWA section 311(b)(3), 33 U.S.C. 
1321 (b)(3), or who fails or refuses to 
comply with any regulations that have 
been issued under CWA section 311(j), 
33 U.S.C. 1321(j), may be assessed a 
Class II civil penalty of up to $137,500 
by EPA. Class II proceedings under 

CWA section 311(b)(6) are conducted in 
accordance with 40 CFR part 22. 

The procedures by which the public 
may comment on a proposed Class II 
penalty order, or participate in a Clean 
Water Act Class II penalty proceeding, 
are set forth in 40 CFR 22.45. The 
deadline for submitting public comment 
on this proposed final order is August 
9, 2002. All comments will be 
transferred to the Environmental 
Appeals Board (‘‘EAB’’) of EPA for 
consideration. The powers and duties of 
the EAB are outlined in 40 CFR 22.4(a). 

Pursuant to CWA section 311(b)(6)(C), 
EPA will not issue an order in this 
proceeding prior to the close of the 
public comment period.

Dated: July 3, 2002. 
Rosemarie A. Kelley, 
Acting Director, Multimedia Enforcement 
Division, , Office of Enforcement and 
Compliance Assurance.
[FR Doc. 02–17310 Filed 7–9–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 6560–50–P

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AGENCY 

[FRL–7243–3] 

Water Quality Trading Policy; 
Proposed Policy; Re-Opening 
Comment Period

AGENCY: Environmental Protection 
Agency.
ACTION: Notice, request for comment; re-
opening of comment period. 

SUMMARY: On May 15, 2002, the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency’s 
(EPA’s) invited public comment on its 
proposed Policy on Water Quality 
Trading (‘‘proposed policy’’). Today’s 
action extends the due date for 
comments to July 15, 2002. The purpose 
of the proposed policy is to signal EPA 
support for soundly designed water 
quality trading programs developed by 
States and Tribes. Another purpose is to 
propose program components that EPA 
believes are appropriate for trading 
programs to be soundly designed and to 
operate successfully. In addition, the 
proposed policy is intended to address 
issues left open and limitations 
encountered implementing projects 
under EPA’s January 1996 Effluent 
Trading Policy and May 1996 draft 
Framework for Watershed-Based 
Trading (EPA 800–R–96–001). 

Water quality trading is a voluntary 
incentive-based approach to more 
efficiently protect and restore the 
nation’s waters. The proposed policy 
addresses trading to maintain water 
quality in unimpaired waters, trading in 
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impaired waters before development of 
a Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) 
and trading to meet TMDLs. While the 
focus is on nutrients and sediment, the 
policy also discusses the potential for 
trading other pollutants under certain 
circumstances. 

The proposed policy is available for 
review at http://www.epa.gov/owow/
watershed/trading.htm

DATES: The Agency requests comments 
on the proposed policy posted at http:/
/www.epa.gov.owow/watershed/
trading.htm. Comments must be 
received or post-marked by midnight on 
Monday, July 15, 2002.

ADDRESSES: The proposed policy is 
available for review at http://
www.epa.gov/owow/watershed/
trading.htm. Please send an original and 
three copies of your written comments 
and enclosures to W–02–07 Comment 
Clerk, Water Docket (MC4101), EPA, 
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., 
Washington, DC 20460. Comments may 
also be submitted electronically to ow-
docket@epamail.epa.gov. Electronic 
comments must be submitted as an 
ASCII, WP5.1, WP6.1 or WP8 file 
avoiding the use of special characters 
and form of encryption. Electronic 
comments must be identified by the 
docket number W–02–07. Comments 
and data will also be accepted on disks 
in WP 5.1, 6.1, 8 or ASCII file format. 
Electronic comments on this notice may 
be filed online at many Federal 
Depository Libraries. Hand deliveries 
should be delivered to: EPA’s Water 
Docket at 401 M Street, SW., Room 
EB57, Washington, DC 20460. 

The record for this proposed policy 
has been established under docket 
number W–02–07, and includes 
supporting documentation as well as 
printed, paper versions of electronic 
comments. The record is available for 
inspection from 9 to 4 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, excluding legal holidays 
at the Water Docket, EB 57, USEPA 
Headquarters, 401 M St SW., 
Washington, DC 20460. For access to 
docket materials, please call 202/260–
3027 to schedule an appointment.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
David Batchelor, EPA, Office of Water, 
(202) 564–5764, 
batchelor.david@epa.gov. or Lynda Hall 
Wynn, EPA, Office of Water, (202) 564–
0472, wynn.lynda@epa.gov.

Dated: July 2, 2002. 

Elisabeth LaRoe, 
Director, Water Policy Staff, Office of Water.
[FR Doc. 02–17238 Filed 7–9–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 6560–50–M

FARM CREDIT ADMINISTRATION

Farm Credit Administration Board; 
Regular Meeting

AGENCY: Farm Credit Administration.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given, 
pursuant to the Government in the 
Sunshine Act (5 U.S.C. 552b(e)(3)), of 
the forthcoming regular meeting of the 
Farm Credit Administration Board 
(Board).

DATE AND TIME: The regular meeting of 
the Board will be held at the offices of 
the Farm Credit Administration in 
McLean, Virginia, on July 11, 2002, from 
9 a.m. until such time as the Board 
concludes its business.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Kelly Mikel Williams, Secretary to the 
Farm Credit Administration Board, 
(703) 883–4025, TDD (703) 883–4444.

ADDRESSES: Farm Credit 
Administration, 1501 Farm Credit Drive, 
McLean, Virginia 22102–5090.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This 
meeting of the Board will be open to the 
public (limited space available). In order 
to increase the accessibility to Board 
meetings, persons requiring assistance 
should make arrangements in advance. 
The matters to be considered at the 
meeting are: 

Open Session 

A. Approval of Minutes 

• June 6, 2002 (Open and Closed). 

B. Reports 

• FCS Building Association’s 
Quarterly Report. 

• Corporate Approvals. 
• Farm Credit Financial Partners, Inc. 
• Farm Credit System 2001 Results 

for Young, Beginning and Small Farmer 
Lending Program. 

• Conditions and Trends in the 
Sacramento Field Office Portfolio. 

• The Canadian Financial System. 
• Farm Credit Canada.

Dated: July 5, 2002. 

Jeanette C. Brinkley, 
Acting Secretary, Farm Credit Administration 
Board.
[FR Doc. 02–17341 Filed 7–5–02; 4:23 pm] 

BILLING CODE 6705–01–P

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS 
COMMISSION 

Notice of Public Information 
Collection(s) Being Reviewed by the 
Federal Communications Commission, 
Comments Requested 

July 2, 2002.
SUMMARY: The Federal Communications 
Commission, as part of its continuing 
effort to reduce paperwork burden 
invites the general public and other 
Federal agencies to take this 
opportunity to comment on the 
following information collection(s), as 
required by the Paperwork Reduction 
Act of 1995, Public Law 104–13. An 
agency may not conduct or sponsor a 
collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid control 
number. No person shall be subject to 
any penalty for failing to comply with 
a collection of information subject to the 
Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA) that 
does not display a valid control number. 
Comments are requested concerning (a) 
whether the proposed collection of 
information is necessary for the proper 
performance of the functions of the 
Commission, including whether the 
information shall have practical utility; 
(b) the accuracy of the Commission’s 
burden estimate; (c) ways to enhance 
the quality, utility, and clarity of the 
information collected; and (d) ways to 
minimize the burden of the collection of 
information on the respondents, 
including the use of automated 
collection techniques or other forms of 
information technology.
DATES: Written comments should be 
submitted on or before September 9, 
2002. If you anticipate that you will be 
submitting comments, but find it 
difficult to do so within the period of 
time allowed by this notice, you should 
advise the contact listed below as soon 
as possible.
ADDRESSES: Direct all comments to 
Judith Boley Herman or Leslie Smith, 
Federal Communications Commission, 
Room 1–C804 or Room 1–A804, 445 
12th Street, SW., Washington, DC 20554 
or via the Internet to jboley@fcc.gov or 
lesmith@fcc.gov.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For 
additional information or copies of the 
information collection(s), contact Judith 
Boley Herman at 202–418–0214 or via 
the Internet at jboley@fcc.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

OMB Control No.: 3060–XXXX. 
Title: Wireless Customer Service 

Evaluation. 
Form No.: N/A. 
Type of Review: New collection. 
Respondents: Individuals or 

households, business or other for-profit,
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